Registered number: 07515832

Transforming Lives Educational Trust
Trustees’' Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 August 2025

“INS

S AUDIT




Transforming Lives Edueational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Contents

Page
Reference and Administrative Details 1-2
Trustees' Report 3-21
Governance Stotement 22-25
Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance 26
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities 27
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements 28-32
Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity 33 -34
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities Incorporating Income and Expenditure 35
Account
Consolidated Balance Sheet 36 - 37
Trust Balance Sheet 38-39
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 39

Notes to the Financial Statements a1-78



Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Reference and Administrative Details

Members

Trustees

Company registered
number

Company name

Registered office

CEQ and Accounting
Officer

L Chon
S Jardine
N Snook
P Davis

G J French, Chair of Trustees

S Jardire

S Crosson

S Rose (resigned 5 Octeber 2024)

R Walker-Green (resigned 10 December 2024}

K Zardin

P Davis (appointed 11 March 2025)

P Murphy {appointed 1 September 2025)
C Choplin (appointed 23 September 2025)
C Warde (oppointed 23 September 2025)

07515832

Transforming Lives Educational Trust

¢/o Houlton School
Signal Drive
Houlton

Rugby
Warwickshire
CV231iED

H Stevenson {appointed 1 September 2025)
J E Higham (resigned 31 August 2025)

Page 1



Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Reference and Administrative Details {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Senior management
team

Independent auditor

Bankers

M A Goodey, CFO, Tronsforming Lives Educational Trust

S Hartle, Director of Education, Transforming Lives Educational

Trust

P Brockwell, Principal, Ashlawn School

$ Darby, Vice Principal, Ashlown School (appointed 01/03/2025)

A Phillips, Vice Principal, Ashlown School

L Cuniiffe, Assistont Principal, Ashlawn Schoo! (oppointed 01/04/2025)
C Coocke, Assistant Principal, Ashlown School

L Pountney, Assistant Principal, Ashlawn School (resigned 31/08/2025)
A Wright, Director of Operotions, Transforming Lives Educational Trust
N Booth, Vice Principal, Ashiown School

K Lodge, Assistant Principal, Ashiown School (oppointed 23/01/2025)
F Edwards, Principal, Henry Hinde infant School (resigned 31/08/2025)
R O'Neill, Assistant Principal, Henry Hinde Infant Schoo!

M Mann, Assistant Principal, Henry Hinde Infant Schoo! (appointed 01/09/2024)
H Stevenson, CEO, Transforming Lives Educational Trust {appointed 01/09/2025)

M Mcculley, Principal, Houlton School

C Buckenham, Assistant Principal, Houlton School

N Ellis, Assistant Principal, Houlton School {resigned 31/08/2025)

A Lancini, Assistant Principal, Houlton School

S warde, Assistont Principal, Houlton School {appointed 01/09/2024)
R Barker, Assistant Principal, Ashiown School

S Turnbull, HR Manager, Transforming Lives Educational Trust

M Hart, [T Manager, Transforming Lives Educational Trust

Doing Audit Limited

2 Chambericin Squore
Birmingham

B3 3AX

Lioyds Bank plc
14 Church Strest
Rugby
warwickshire
CV213PL

Fage 2



Transforming Lives Educationat Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025, The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees'
report and a directors’ report under compony low,

Structure, governonce and management

a. Constitution

Transforming Lives Educational Trust (the *Trust") is a charitable company limited by guarantee (regisiration number
07515832) and an exempt charity,

The charitable company's memorandum and articles of asseciation are the primary governing documents of the Trust.

The chariteble company known as Transforming Lives Educational Trust is o multi-academy trust and for the period
covered by this report the Trust had responsibility for the following entities:

. Ashlown Schocl

. Henry Hinde infant School

. Henry Hinde Junior Schoot

. Houiton School

. TLET Professional Learning Limited (formerly Innovation Learning and Leadership Alliance Limited)

These financiol statements for the periocd ended 31 August 2025 relote to the operaiion of the Trust,
The charitable company’s Articles of Association is the primary governing docurment of the Trust.

The Trustees of Transforming Lives Educational Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these financial statements are approved ore
inciuded in the Reference ond administrative details on poge 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitoble company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are o member, or within one year after they cease to be o member, such amount us
may be required, not exceading £10, for the debis and liabilities contracted before they ceosed to be a member.

¢. Trustees' indemnities

In accordance with normal commerciat practice, the Trust hos purchased insurance to protect its Members, Directors,
Acodemy Representatives and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Trust business. The professional indemnity insurance cover is unlimited and is provided by the Department for
Educotion under their ‘Risk Protection Arrangement’,
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guourantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or efection of Trustees

The management of the Trust and the group is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co-opted under
the terms of the Articles of Association.

The Members of Transforming Lives Educational Trust may appoint and/or remove Trustees ond the Trustees
appoint/remove those in positions of governance of the academies, known as Governcrs, both in accordance with the
Trust's selection and recruitment policy and procedures,

The minimum number of Trustees cliowed at any time is three.
e. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Trustees and governance poriners are agpointed, in line with the Trust's recruitment policies and safer recruitment
practice, on the basis of skills needed, with all Trustees and Partners being annually assessed through self-assessment
against the Naotional Governors' Association (NGA) skills audit frarmework. Induction and training for those in a position
of governance is reflective of the sector and identified assessed needs ond delivered using independent expert supplier
of services such os ECM Educational Consultonts, Browne Jocobson LLP, the NGA, The Key, Jugicium, and
Warwickshire Education Services. Trustees and Partners ore all subject to Disclosure and Barring Service checks.

f. Orgunisational structure and decision making
The orgonisational structure of the Tronsforming Lives Educational Trust, and ol associcted responsibility ond

cccountabifity, is vested in the Members and Trustees (inc. Locol Governing Boards), and the Executive (inc. the Trust
Executive, the Central Teom, ond the respective Academy leadership teams). All are pivetal in decision making.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure (continved)

The Governance Body

IS "
Executive
CEC
Dir of .
Education Local Governing Boards
Aahilawn Sthoot
* flenfy Himde infant Schoot
. Henry Rinde Junior Sthool
* Houttan Schoot
CFO L ) )
Dir of .
. School Leadership
Operations

Local Governing Boards (LGBs) ensure leaming provision at individual academy level is fit for purpose and sustains the
Trust's vision as expressed through our core purpose of ‘Transforming Tomorrow, Today'. To this end, LGBs operate as
sub-committees for the Trust Board.

The authority and powers of LGBs coscade from the Trust Board and are set out in the Scheme of Delegated Authority
(ScDA).

The Principais of each academy report to the Director of Education, CEO and the LGBs. They are responsible for the
efficient and effective day-to-day running of the academies, in particular organising staff, curriculum, faciiities, and

pupils.
g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration for key management personnel (including Principals) is aligned to the School Teachers' Poy and
Conditions Document (STPCD) leadership range being reflective of role, responsibility and, with regord 1o the
Principals, the group (size) classification of the particular academy. Within the Central Team, including the Exacutive, a
TLET Central Pay Scale has been adopted, which is aligned te the STPCD and the National Joint Council (NJC),
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and manggement (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

Transforming Lives Educational Trust Board of Trustees hos a Business Standards Committee (BSC) to advise the
Board on matters relating to the Trust's stoff ond poy structures. The main duties and responsibility of this committes is

to:

. recrult, appoint and set the remuneration of Executive roles, Principal(s) and Senior Leadership teoms;
. hold oversight of the pay ond terms and conditions of service of all employees in the Trust;

* review and recommend to the Board any significant changes to staffing structures; and

. ratify remuneration for the CEO and academy Principalls).

Performance gppraisals of Principols are supported by external independent reviewers with currency of educational
leadership expertise. During the period of these financial stotements, the BSC was incorporated inte the Trust Board

who fulfilled this sub-committee’s responsibilities.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant vnion officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year
Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time

0%

1%-30%

51%-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of focility time

Totol pay bill

Percentoge of total pay bill spent on facility time

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total poid focility time hours

Number of
employees

£
994

15,397,068
- %

100 %
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continved)
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Trust is linked to a number of organisations through its Trustees ond Executive Leaders. The Trust has a
transparent process for ensuring these relationships are understood and that transoctions ore at an arms-length basis.

The Trust has a fully owned subsidiory in the period: TLET Professional Learning Limited. The results of the subsidiary
have been consclidated within these financial statements. Since September 2021, this subsidiary has been dormant and,
therefore, not traded in this reporting year.

i. Engogement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust has ¢ single Equality Policy, supported by acodemy specific equality objectives. We strive to ensure that the
recruitment, retention, and ongeing development of staff is undertaken in o foir and equitable manner to support the
Trust's vision and values. We have long established fair employment proctices detailed in o range of policies in relation

to all aspects of personnel matters as @ result.

we see all employees and volunteers of the Trust, and wider community, of equel value:

. whether or not they are disabled;

. whatever their ethnicity, culture, religious affiliction, natienal origin or socio-economic circumstances;
. whichever their gender and sexual orientation; and

. wWhatever their age.

Where on existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the trust
continues. The Trust's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promotion, which are, ¢s
far as possible, identical 1o those of other employees.

The Trust engages with ¢ll members of its acaderny communities, including its employees. This is done through both
formal and informal exercises to ollow staff to share their views, along with forma! survey opportunities throughout the
year.

The Trust also engages with employees through trode union representatives. The Trust has continued to strengthen its
relationship with trade unions during the year, recognising their place os partners in our improvement journey.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Structure, governance and management {continuved)

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The Trust Boord ensures that all decisions are taken for the long-term, and collectively and individually aims to always
uphold the highest stondard of conduct. Similarly, the Board recognises that the Trust can only grow and prosper over
the long-term if it understands ond respects the views and needs of key stakeholders ond employees to whem we are
accountable, as well os the environment we cperate within.

Typically, in a Trust of our size, the Board fulfil thelr duties partly through a governance framework that delegates day-
to-day decision making to the employees of the Trust. The Board recognises that such delegation needs to be part of a
robust governance structure, which covers our values, how we engage with our stakeholders, ond how the Board
assures itself that the governance structure and systems of contrels continue to be robust,

The Board recognise that employees are fundamental and core to the delivery of our strotegic ambitions. Qur success
depends on attracting, retaining, and motivating employees. Ensuring that we remain o responsible employer, from
pay and benefits, to ocur health, safety ond workplace environment, the Boord factor the implications of decisions on
empioyees and the wider workforce, where relevant and feasible.

The Trust continuously assesses the priorities related to suppliers with whom we do business, and the Boord engages
with the Executive Leadership Team on these topics, for example, within the context of business strategy uvpdates,
supplier selection for critical factors such as the selection of senior members of staff, and activities such as internal
audit as well as infrastructure investment proposals.

The Trust Boord Choir, with the assistance of the CEQ, sets the agenda for each Board meeting to ensure thot the
requirements of section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 are always met and considered through a combination of the
following:

. Board papers ensure thot stokehoider factors ore addressed where these are judged to be relevant.

. Standing agenda points and papers presented ot each Boord meeting, for example, the CEC presents updates
on strotegic progress, academic progress, operational progress, and future developments of the Trust. The CFO
presents the financial ocverview of the Trust and highlights and challenges or issues that may arise.

. A rolling agenda of matters to be considered by the Board including o review of the Trust strategic plan
supporied by a budget for the following yeaor and o 3-year financial plan.

. Regulorly scheduled Board presentations ond reports, for example, the Trust Risk Register, financial
reports, and new or amended policies.

. Engagement with the Trust’s key stakeholders, the DfE, the Local Authority, ond Central Government as well as

local communities ond updates on any consultations held by the Trust,

The Trust recognises thot its external partnerships are critical to our success and, to this end, nurtures positive
relationships with key suppliers, ensuring they understand oand supgport the vision, values, ond ambitions of the Trust.
Whilst alwaoys seeking value for money, the Trust seeks to manage risk oppropriately and ensure acceptable quality of
good services, whilst protecting the reputation of the Trust in its business relationships. Through foir and eguitable
procurement processes, the Trust ensures oll potential suppliers ond stakeholders are treated fairly.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities
a. Objects, aims, strategies and objectives

Over the course of this yeor, the Trust Board and the Executive Team hove worked alongside cur ccademy leaders,
and other stokeholders, 1o continue to embed our vision ond volues,

“The TLET way, which restotes our core purpose to “Transform Tomorrow, Taday', and heralds the next phase in
TLET's evolution. Building on our strong  foundations, ‘The TLET Way' signals a new baseline as we continue 10
progress and Improve against our newly conceived strategic ombitions of nurture potential, inspire community, ond
deliver excellence:

Through the transformative values of courage,
kindness and loyalty, together we:

NURTURE POTENTIAL INSPIRE COMMUNITY DELIVER EXCELLENCE
We flourish in the We Champigﬂ each We strive fo
places we create other to make a achieve our best.
together, difference.

Our culture has evolved as the Trust has developed but it has remained unapologetically ambiticus for the futures of
the children and staff of TLET and rooted in our values, From these we have built, and sustained, strong relationships
throughout the TLET family, creciing the right environment in which to flourish ond thrive. We aim to be a Trust with
one vision made up of many voices; where children and staff alike feel connected to our vision, represented by our
ambitions, and inspired by our values - they belong. It is through this sense of shared purpose and partnership that we
can be transformative.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities (continued)

Qur Strotegic Plan runs to 2030 and this year marks the second-year cuycle of implementing cur strategic ambitions.
we have continued to make significant pregress, the highlights of which include:

Nurture Potential

L]

.

Design and launch of o trust-wide intronet to support staff communication and workload.

Revised the format of our annual trust-wide Conference in fovour of biannual Roodshows in each academy to
update and engage with all employees.

wide distribution of our Stratagic Plan, extending to all external stakeholders.

Lounch of our Wellbeing Charter for employees.

Revised approach to employee appraisal, integroting our Wellbeing Charter, and providing o new policy
staterment ahead of wider engagement and consuftation with staff.

Documented our Initial Teacher Training strategy, including cur above and beyond value adding programmes,
Recruited and troining wellbeing champions for all acodemies, along with trained mental heaith first aiders.
Implemented a standard annual schedule for Local Governing Boaord agendas to enhance their assess-plan
-review approach to school performance and improvement,

Introduced the role of Governance Professional to further strengthen our system of governance.

Refined ond codified our governance induction procedures.

Inspire Community

introduced o trust-wide Altendance Policy ond implemented a professional network for punctuality and
attendance.

Incregsed the ronge ond frequency of inter-trust events, including science fairs, TLET's Got Tolent, MFL primary
programme, sccial events, supported by o trust-wide calendar.

Estoblished a trust-wide definition for inclusion and explored inclusion accraditation for our academies.

More closely tracked the engagement of vulnerable pupils and students in co-curricular activities and targeted
increqse in uptoke.

Further enhanced partnerships and links with local community groups and businesses to strengthen wider
opporiunities for our pupls ond students.

Audited our civic responsibilities ccross the trust to identify how we contribute prooctively to the wider
community ond system.

Deliver Fxcellence

Further strengthened our finonce opergting modet and implemented the use of Integrated Curriculum &
Fingncial Planning (ICFP).

Implementad a minimum estates and infrastructure to our academies.

Reviewed and revised our trust-wide estotes strategic plon.

Published our cadifiad model for school improvement.

Implemented a new iocal risk approach via our Schoo! Categorisation Framework and trained local leaders and
governors on its accurate use.

Enhanced quality assurance processes through the introduction of peer-to-peer reviews,

Determined the model for post-16 provision at Houlton School.

Increosed the range of professional networks and received positive feedback obout the impact these networks
are having on our staff.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Objectives and activities (continued}

b. Public benefit

The Trustees have complied with their doty to hove due regard to the guidence on public benefit published by the
Charity Cormmission in exercising their powers or duties. The key public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of
high-quatity education to our pupiis and students and is particularly well-represented by the sustained or improved
performance of cur academies. The Trust seeks to provide the cultural, physical, spiritucl, as well as ocacemic,
development of our pupils and students,

All our accdemies are used as a resource by the local community. They are used by community groups that serve o
wide cross-section of the local population, and our Lettings Policy provides discounted rates for some community
groups.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance
a. Review of activities

School Improvement

The central school improvemeant team is led by the Director of Education, who brings significant experience of school
and systemn leadership. This role is suppiemented by central Education improvement leads, professional network leads,
and the extended Leadership Group of the Trust, which is increasingly ensuring that every pupil and student in the
Trust benefits from the best that we have to offer. In addition, new senior leadership roles and appointments have been
made this year at all our academies, further strengthening the breadth and capacity of the Trust's leadership. As a
result, the pace ond focus of schoo! improvement activity has entered the next phase in our Trust-wide offer,

The Trust's self-evaluation framework, based on the CST's Building Strong Trusts Assurance Framework, demonstrates
the considerable developments and achievernents in the last academic year. Nine areas of the framework are now
emerging as strengths including strotegic governance, expert ethical leadership, workforce resilience and wellbeing,
and public benefit and civic duty. Furthermore, d leading strength of the Trust is financial strategy and probity, os well
as effective and efficient use of resources. This has been supported by internal oudit and external review of
governance, os part of our ongoing commitment to improvermnent, that concluded our system of governance is strong,
fit-for-purpose, and with the required copocity and expertise to challenge and support the Trust's future development.
Improvements identified through the self-evaluation process is demonstrable of the increcsed capacity within the
organisation to improve provision for our children, young people, and stoff.

Our ocademies benefit from high-quality central services which enable school leaders to do whet they love -
supporting our pupils and students to have o second-to-none school experience. Our centralised approach to core
services inciuding finance, HR, estates, safeguarding, and 1T has ensured thot all ccademies have equitable access to
high-quality suppert and leadership in these areas, which now oct as enablers for school improvement. The net saving
of this process of centralisation has been invested in increased copacity for pastoral support and schoo! improvement
as well as condition and Infrastructure improvements across the TLET estate.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guargntee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Our funding model has meant that we have been able to address some of the Inegualities thot exist in the education
system. We believe strongly in equity of opportunity for ali and that this should not be defined by the size of the school
they ottend, and our funding model has allowed us 1o start to remedy this. Our academies have started to benefit from
our rolling progromme to improve facilities, as well as curriculum-led staffing structures.

The Trust has continued to respond proactively in managing the ongoing funding challenges experienced ocross the
sector. Inflationary costs remain unmatched by income streams, exacerbated by national recruitment challenges. The
Trust Boord and the Executive team have worked closely to carefully monitor and scrutinise the impact of this over the
course of the past year, Through thelr work, and the use of Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning, os well as our
GAG pocling approach, resources have been effectively distributed and used to ensure cur academies thrive,

Ofsted inspections in 2024/2025

In June 2025, Ashlawn schoo! was subject to a Section 5 inspection of the Inspection Framework. The inspection
findings judged the school to be Good in all oreas and where 'There is a shared belief in the school's vision of everyone
giving ‘our best, always™ and ‘The school is a community working together.looking to the future with even greater
ambition for the school.

Of our four academles, 100% are judged Good or better.
b. Key performance indicators (KPIs)

The Trustees consider the following to be the key financial performance indicators for the period 1 September 2024 to
31 August 2025

2025 2024

Income: Total DfE/ESFA income (exch capital) £18,195,315 £16,940 502
Staffing: Total staff costs £16,037 417 £14,688 238
Stoff costs to ESFA income % 881% 86.7%

Stoff costs 1o total income % 79.7% 78.7%

Expenditure: Total expenditure {excl depn) £19,783,842 £18,622.852
Staff costs to total expenditure % 811% 78.9%

Trustees consider these KPIs to be in ine with expectations and comparable to relevant benchmarking dato.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

{A Compuany Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continuved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance {continuved)

¢. Promoting the success of the company

Trustees have o duty to promote the success of the Trust to achieve its charitable purposes and, in doing so, cre
required by Section 172 of the Componies Act 2006 to have regard te the following:

1. The likely conseguences of any decision in the long-term therefore oll decisions are teken with o view of
maintaining or improving the long-term educational, operational, and financial performance of the Trust.

2. The interests of Trust's employees therefore please refer to page ‘Engagement with employees (including
disabled persons) on page 7.

3 The need to foster the Trust's business relaticnships with suppliers, customers, and others therefore
please refer to ‘Engagement with suppliers, custamers, and other business relationships with the Trust’ on
page 8.

4, The impoct of the Trust's operations on the community ond the environment therefore the Trust is

committed to developing strong community refationships while also considering the environmental impact
of its operations with the cim of reducing impact to an cbsolute minimum.

5. The desirability of the Trust maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct therefore the
values of the Trust of courage, kindness, and loyalty are key to decision-making In order 1o protect the
Trust’s reputation and ensuring high standards of business conduct.

6. The need to act fairly between members of the company therefore our biennial externoi review of
governance supports seff-evaluation and confidence in fair treagtment within the arganisation.

d. Going concern

After making oppropriate enguiries, the Trust 8oard has o reasonable expectotion thot the Trust has cdeguate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Trustees are canfident that budgets and
forecosts adequately cccount for additiono! costs relating to government announced funding models, increases in
inflation, especially the increased cost of staffing, ond that there is no material risk to the Trust's ability to continue in
operatiencl existence for the foreseeable future.

For this reason, the Trust Board continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements,
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Financial review

Financial position

Most of the Trust's income is obtoined from the Department for Education (DFE) in the form of recurrent grant, the use
of which is restricted to particular purposes and included within the Funding Agreement between the Secretary of State
for Education and Transforming Lives Educctional Trust.

The grants received from the DIE during the pericd ended 31 August 2025, and the associcted expenditure, are shown
as restricted funds In the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also recelves grants for copital expenditure from the DfE. In accordance with the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2019) and the Acodemies Accounts Direction
2024-2025, such grants are shown in the Staterment of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund.
The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced annual depreciction charges over the expected useful life of the
assets concerned.

During the period ended 31 August 2025, the Trust recelved income of £18195315 (2024 - £16,540,502} from the DfE in
respect of Genercl Annuo! Grant (GAG) and cther grants, and £116,385 (2024 - £224301) in the form of DfE copital and
maintenance grants. It also generated its own income of £194,719 (2024 - £140.759).

Total expenditure for the period before actuarial adjustments arising from the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS), depreciation and donated gssets was £19989842 (2024 - £18,793,852).

The net deficit for the period amounted to £1,005,274 (2024 - £1.065,920), which included £1.364,545 (2024 - £1115,780)
of depreciation gnd £276,000 of LGPS Income (2024 - £174 000}

As at 31 August 2025, the net book value of fixed assets was £45,225970 (2024 - £46,484,787). The assetls were used
exclusively for providing education and the ossociated support services 1o the pupils and students of the gcademies,

The Trust held total fund bafances at 31 August 2025 of £46423214 (2024 - £47,654,488) comprising a surplus of
£325333 (2024 - £520,848) on restricted general funds, a surplus of £849,078 (2024 - £648.853) on unrestricted general
funds and £45248 803 (2024 - £46,484787) on the fixed assets funds. The LGPS wos in o £Nil position (2024 - £Nil
position) at the period end.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

a. Reserves policy

The long to megium-term aim is for the Trust's general reserves balance (excluding pension reserve} to be maintained
ot o level of at Jeost 5% of the combined GAG for aoll schocls. This is the percentage that the Trustees regard 6s an
approprigte leve!l of reserves in the current operating environment.

Each year the Trust aims to set a bolanced budget where the expectation is thot each ocodemy will anticipote o
surplus of 5% of GAG. On occasion this may be flexed to meet any significant changes in the operational environment
that may arise.

The Trust Reserves Policy does not stote o maximum level of reserves, but rather seeks to align any Trust reserves with
o long-term plan for each ccademy. Assuming that the in-year surplus of around 5% is met then, over time, it is
expected that the levels of reserves for the Trust will steadily build up. These reserves will be used to meet the long-
term strotegic plan for the Trust, in perticuiar around the investments required in the infrastructure of each academy
to maintain their physical and technological environment.

The Audit & Risk Committee as approved by the trustees, review the level of reserves of the Trust annualiy. This review
encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments, and the
nature of reserves.

Al the end of the year, free reserves totcled £816,812 (2024 - £616587) which represent 514% (2024 - 4.14%) of
combined GAG for oll acodemies.

In the next financial year commitments have airecdy been made to certoin projects acress the Acodemies, some of
which have commenced in 2024-2025, One of these projecis is:

Project Academy |Purpose value (£)|
Update IT infrostruciure in refation to WIFL L Ashlawn Creote refiable ond technically up to date WIFl infrastructure 248,000 1

Under Accounting Standard FRS102, it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the LGPS that is provided for our
non-teaching stoff to o specific restricted reserve. As at 31 August 2025, the deficit on this reserve amounted to £NIL It
should also be noted thot this does not present the Trust with a current liguidity preblem.

b. investment policy

The Trust is firmly committed to ensuring that ail funds under its control are administered in such o way as to maoximise
return while minimising risk. Trustees do not consider the investment of surplus funds as a primary activity, but rather @
requirement for the effective management of funds.

Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association the Trustees have the power to deposit or invest any funds not
immediately required for the furtherance of its objects {but to invest only after obtoining such advice from an
independent financial institution). During the yeor ended 31 August 2025, no investments were made.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

¢. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust is in g secure, stable, and sustainable financial position as a result of effective controls, scruting and cudit.
The Trust’'s ccademies are operated effectively, providing sound value for money.

The Trustees hove assessed the major risks to which the charitable company is exposed, in particuiar those relating 1o
teaching, provision of focilities ond other operational areas of the Trust and its fingnees. The Trustees have
implemented several systems to assess risks that the Trust faces, especially in the operational areas, and in relation {o
the control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures and interncl financial controls,
to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk remains, they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The
Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls.

The Executive Leadership Teom undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the Trust is exposed. They
identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions, which should mitigote any potentiol impact on
the Trust. The internal controls are then implemented and the subseguent year's opproisol will review their
effectiveness and progress ogoinst risk mitigation actions, In addition to the annuagl review, the Trust Executive
Leadership Tearn also consider any risks which may orise os o result of any new crea of work being undertaken by the
Trust.

A risk register is maintained by the Trust Board, which is reviewed ot least annually by Trustees and more frequently
by the Audit and Risk Committee and the Executive Legdership Team. The risk register identifies the key risks, the
likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the Trust and the actions being token to reduce and
mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using o consistent scoring system.

The Trustees confirm that the major risks to which the Trust is exposed have been reviewed, in particular those refating
to teaching, provision of facllities, ond other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances. The Trustees are satisfied
that systems and procedures are In place to mitigate the exposure to major risks.

Together, these represent the key areas of risk to the Trust and its academies and, as such, adequate mitigating
actions have been identified and are reviewed as part of the Trust Board's oversight of the risk register.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which it is exposed and are satisfied that its systems of governance and
procedures are adeguate to mitigate such exposure of risk.

The principal areos of risk to Tronsforming Lives Educcotional Trust have been reviewed by the Trust Board. As ¢ result,
two principdl risks have been identified:
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Trustees' Report {continved)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025
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The two principal areas of risk extend cut to an additional four risks thot cover:

. Reputation

. Leadership

. Expenses/Rising Costs
. Growth

Not all factors are within the Trust's control and cther factors, not listed above, may also odversely affect the Trust.

Risks are mitigated in a number of ways, including:

. Ensuring the Trust is rigorous in delivering high quality education and tramning:

. A comprehensive marketing/PR programme;

. Rigorous monitoring of financial activities ensuring value for money;

. Maintenance of a detailed estate condition improvement plan to ensure maximum value is cbtained from the

Trust's premises; and
. Robust quality assurance systern 1o ensure systems in place for safeguarding remain effective.

d. Fundraising

The Trust carries out a limited amount of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which it operates. All
fundrgising is undertaken at individual academy level and any funds raised remain within the academy which raised
them, unless specifically raised for a charitable denation.

In circumstonces where fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in ploce to seporate and protect funds.
The Trust is mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act 2016 ond legal
rules, and ensure all activities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership Team level. Recognised standards are
applied to ensure that fundraising Is open, honest, and respectful, protecting the public from undue pressure to donate.
The Trust does not usually work with professional fundraisers or companies who carry out fundraising on its behaif.

Complaints are handled and monitored through the Trust's complaints procedure. During the year, no complaints of
issues have arisen as result of the fundraising activities.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

e, Systems of internal control

The Trust has an embedded system of internal control, including financial, operationat and risk management, which is
designed to protect the Trust’s assets and reputation.

The Trust's system of internal finoncial control is based on ¢ framework of regulor monagement information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegotion and accountability. It
includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and pericdic financial reports
which are reviewed ond agreed by the Trust Board.
. Reguior reviews by the Audit & Risk sub-committee, as approved by the Trustees, of reports which

indicate financial performance agoinst the forecasts ond of major purchase plons, copital works ond
expenditure progrommes.

. Setting targets to measure finoncicl and other performance.

. Provision of monthly management accounts to Trusteas and the consideration of these at each Trust Board
meeting.

. Mandatery finonce and risk reporting fromeworks for local governance.

. Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

. Delegation of authority and segregation of duties.

. Identificotion and management of risks.

The Trust Beard continues to determine the need for a specific internal gudit function and has appointed Acadermy
Advisory as the Trust's internal auditors.

The internal auditors report to the Trust Beard through the Audit & Risk Committae on the operation of the systems of
control and on the dischorge of the Trust Board's finoncial responsibilities.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

The Group's greenhouse gos emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2025 2024
Energy consumption breakdown (kwh):
Gas 2,724,81 2,459,066
Electricity 996,121 1,078,737
Tronsport fuel 13,257 18,617
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Gas consumption and biomass 500.15 470.86
Owned fransport - mini-buses 2.96 231
Total scope 1 5031 47317
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Purchased electricity 176.31 251.50
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivdlent):
Business travel in employee-owned or rental vehicles 0.97 133
Totatl gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 680.39 726.00
Intensity ratio:

Tonnes of COZ equivalent per pupil 0.26 .29

The Group has followed and used the following quantification and reperting methodologies:

. the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;
. the GHG Reporting Protocel - Corporate Standard; and
. the 2025 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

The chosen intensity mecsurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to Improve energy efficiency:

2024-25 sow the development of our Trust wide Climate Action Plon. in 2025-26, we will be bringing together a working
party to agree on the delivery of the actions contained in the plan.

we also continue to replace legocy fighting as it expires for energy efficient LED units.
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For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Plans for future periods

Tronsforming Lives Educational Trust is geared to develop its status as a strong schools® trust through the inclusion
and incorporation of primary and secondary schools within the Rugby arec as well as schools from within an
accessible geogrophical proximity operating to same/simitar ethos and volues.

Specifically, in 2025/26, our main objectives are:

Nurture Potentigl

* Re-affirm and refresh the Trust's vision, values, and ambitions as we opproach the mid-point in the delivery of
our Strategic Plan.

. Engage with staff 1o support the design of our revised opproach to appraisal and consult with all relevant
stakeholders.

* Document our carear pathways.

. Establish trust-wide expectations and guidance on the use of genergtive artificicl intelligence.

. Revise our mechanisms for capturing staff voice and feedback.

Inspire Communiy

. Support academy leaders following changes to Ofsted's inspection framework.

. Review trust-wide approaches to fixed term suspensions.

. Develop a revised strategy for improving attendance, especiallu in our primary phases.

. Strengthen trust-wide leadership of personal development curricula.

. Codify trust-wide pupil feedback systems.

. Standardise and improve the collection of data on our engogement with staff, parents and pupils.
. Further expansion of inter-trust events.

Deliver Excellence

. Review current financial systems and support.

. Deliver primary phase provision ot Houlton School.

. Progress the merger of Henry Hinde infant and Henry Hinde Junior schools,
. IT systems upgrades.

. Document and market trust-wide post-16 provision,

" Standardise leadership approaches within cur professional netwaorks.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
At 31 August 2025, there were no funds held as custodian on behglf of others.
Disclosure of information to auditor

insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unoware, and
. thot Trustees have token all steps that they ought 1o have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditer is aware of that information.
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Auditor

The cuditor, Dains Audit Limited, has indicated their willingness to continue in office. The designated Trustees will
propose a motion reappointing the cuditors at a Trust Boord meeting.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating o strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 9 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

ool

G J French
Chair of Trustees
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Governgnce Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we hove overall responsibifity for ensuring that Transforming Lives Educational Trust has
an effective and cppropriate system of control, financiol and otherwise. However, such o system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasoncble and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and token account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Guide.

The Trust Board has delegated the day-to-doy responsibility 1o the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial
controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial manogement ond in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned fo it in the funding agreement between Transforming Lives Educational
Trust and the Secretary of State for Educotion. They are also responsible for reporting to the Trust Board any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in interngl control.

The Trust's internal cuditors, appeinted during this report period, will support the Accounting Officer in their role, and
report their findings and recommendation to the Audit and Risk Committes for review.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement
of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formaliy met 6 times during the year.

Attendonce during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
G J French 6 6
S Jardine & 6
K Zordin 4 33
R Walker-Green 2 2
S Rose 1 1
S Crosson 4 6
P Davis 2 3

Conflicts of interest gre managed through a series of controls. These include the maintenance of en up-to-date and
complete register of interests, the reporting of declarations of interests at the stort of each beard meeting and regular
reviews of registers.

During the yeor the boord of trustees have agreed an Annuagl Governance Improvement Plan, which has been
monitered throughout the year. The Governance Improvement Plan is based on a review of the Academy Trust
Governance Guide and utilises the National Governance Association's MAT governance seif-evalugtion questions to
ensure comprehensive coverage. In addition, the trust board have established a Governance Professional role within
the central team, bringing this role in-house and ensuring a consistency of approach for the board and subcommittees.
The board has committed 1o holding an external review of governance every 3 years, with the lost one produced being
in 2023, so areview is due in 2025-2026. This will be subject to agreement of the Members at the AGM.
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Governance (continued)

The Audit and Risk sub-commitiee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees and met on 3 occcasions.

Attendonce during the year ot these meetings was as foliows:

Trustee Meetings attended
§ Jardine 3
S Crosson 3
K Zardin 3

The Standards & Sofeguarding sub-committee met on 5 occasions.

Attendance during the year at these meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended
S Crosson

G J French 4

R waiker-Green 5

Review of vaive for money

Out of ¢ possible

Out of a possible

As Accounting Gfficer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands thot volue for money refers to the educational and
wider societal cutcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the toxpayer resources

received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for maney during each
ocademic yeor, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for maney can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking dota or by using a framework where appropriote. The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered

improved value for money during the year by:

Supporting close working relationships  between Trust acodemies to enoble proactive support and
challenge across our academies, including the sharing of expert staff;

Continued to review the procurement of services across our academies to achleve better quality;

Greater economies of scale and consistent outcomes via Trust-wide central service provision, including,
but not limited 1o the review of third-porty supplier contracts;

Consulting appropriate stakeholders before major decisions are made;

Promoting fair competition through quotations and tenders to ensure that goods and services are secured in
the most ecenomic, efficient, and effective way; and

Achieving positive educational cutcomes, typically above national averages.

The Trust maintains a number of estates asset registers as well os o detaited estote condition improvement
strategy, including an asset management plan ond @ project funding plan, to ensure it has a sofe ond well
-maintained estate that complies with all of the appropriate regulations.
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The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to o regsonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
foilure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of Trust policies, oims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in Tronsforming Lives Educational Trust for the period T September 2024 to 31 August
2025 and up 1o the dote of approval of the annual report and finangicl stotements,

Capacity to handle risk

The Trust Board has reviewad the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigote those risks. The Trust Board is of the view that there is a
formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks, that has been in place
for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up 1o the date of approval of the onnual report and financial
statements. This process is regulorly reviewed by the Trust Boord.

The risk and control framework

The Trust’s system of internal control is based on o framework of regular management information and administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties and o system of delegation and accountability. in particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitering systems with an annual budget ond pericdic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Trust Board;

. regulor reviews by the Audit and Risk sub-committee of reports, which indicate financia! performance against
the forecasts and of major purchose plans, capital works ond expenditure programmes

. setting torgets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (osset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Academy Advisory as internal auditor,

The internal guditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on
the Trust's financial ond other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

. a review of the Trust's risk management process, including a review of the risk register, ond @ review of current
practices in place to govern risk monagement in order to assess if they are aporogricie to the needs of the
Trust or require improvement to reflect best practice.

. a review to provide assurance thot the system of internal control is functioning properly both at the Trust ond
across all constituent scheools.

The internal cuditor delivered their schedule of work as planned. Key control issues arising as a result of the review
work were as follows:

. the risk register did not appeor to contain KPis or relevant documentation to suppeort mitigoting actions
identified that enabled the monitoring of the performance of controls. Also, it was not clear whether combined
risk scores were low/very low or high/very high without reference 1o @ matrix. A number scoring matrix wos
suggested to moke it eosier to manage and identify the severity of risks.
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The risk and control framework (continued)

. the Trust's pelicies did not set out the procedures to be undertaken for determining severance payments, nor
did they mention of obtaining prior approvat from the DFE for the following: writing off debts and losses,
ocquiring and disposing of fixed ossets, leases, reporting contracts ond agreements with related parties to the
DE in advance or obtaining prior approval frem the DEE for contracts with related parties beyond those limits
stated in the Acadermy Trust Handbook.

In respect of mitigating actions for the risk register, the Trust considered adding ancther column 1o the rigk register for
performance metrics and relevant decumentation, however it was considered to be only ralevant on limited risks and
therefore, unnecessary. The Trust aiso considered incorporating a scoring maotrix to the risk register, however it was
considered subjective and adjudged to odd Htle value 1o the manogement of risk.

The Trust noted that procedures requiring prior approval from the DE were set out explicitly in the Trust's finance
poiicy alpeit not explicity set out in each section of the policy and clse the legislation for determining severance
poyments was set out in the Trust's overall policy albeit not set out explicitly in o set of procedures.

On an annual baosis, the internal guditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the oudit and risk committee on the
opergation of the systems of control and on the dischorge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities. On an
annual bosis the internal auditor prepares o summary report to the commitiee outlining the arecs reviewed, key
findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess yeur on year progress.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer hos responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in guestion the review has been informed by

. the work of the internal auditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the internal cuditor;

. the work of the executive leaders within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework; and

. the work of the external auditor.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit and Risk sub-commitiee and o plon to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the opinion
that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management ond controk

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 8 December 2025 and signed an their behalf by:

(ool

G J French H Stevenson
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

v T
k,»’\?‘“\‘m\_u
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Transforming Lives Educational Trust, | confirm that | have had due regard to the framework
of authorities geverning reguiarity, propriety and compliance, including the trust's funding agreement with DfE, and the
requirements of the Acadermy Trust Handbook, including responsibilities for estates sefety and monagement. | have
clso considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and DfE of material irregularity,
impropriety and neon-complionce with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estotes sofety ond
rmanagement.

I confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are gble to identify any materiad irregular or improper use of
all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the framwork of authorities,

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance have been discovered 1o date. If any
instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and DfE.

Cn o F T
H Stevenson

Accounting Officer

Date: 9 December 2025
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Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the Yeor Ended 31 August 2025

The Trustees (who ore alse the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company low) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the finuncial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and oppliceble law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial staterents for each financial yeor. Under company law, the
Trustees must not apprave the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
stute of offairs of the Group and the charitable company and of their incoming resources ond application of resources,
including their income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financicl statements, the Trustees cre
required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to
2025;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Stondards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed ond explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group

and the choritable company will continue in business.

The Trustees ore responsitle for keeping odequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at eny time the finoncial
position of the Group and the charitable company ond enable them to ensure that the finencicl statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the charitable
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees cre responsible for ensuring that in their conduct and operation the Group and the charitable company
appiu financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good finenciol
management. They are aiso responsible for ensuring grants received from DfE have peen opplied for the purposes
intended,

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charilable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of

financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 9 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

G J French
Chair of Trustees

Page 27



Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements to the Members of Transforming Lives Educational
Trust

Opinion

We have gudited the financial statements of Transforming Lives Educational Trust {the 'parent Trust) ond its
subsidiaries (the ‘Group? for the year ended 31 August 2025 which comprise the Consolidoted Stotement of Financial
Activities, the Consolidated Balonce Sheet, the Trust Balonce Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
reiated notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparction is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdoem Generally
Accepted Accounting Proctice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Irelond’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Acadermies Accounts Direction 2024 to
2025 issued by the Department for Education.

in our opinion the financiol statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Trust's affairs as ot 31 August 2025 and of
the Group's incoming resources and opplication of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year
then ended:;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in gccordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charlties SORP 2019

and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education.

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and apgplicable law.
Gur responsibilities under those standords are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financigl statements section of our report. We are indegendent of the Group in cccordance with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
reguiramentis. We believe that the oudit evidence we have obicined is sufficient and appropriate o provide a bosis for
our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the finoncial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial staternents is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any maoterial uncertointies reloting to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the parent Trust's obility to
continue as o going concern for o period of ot leost twelve months from when the financiol statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to geing concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the finoncial statements to the Members of Transforming Lives Educational
Trust {(continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the informetion included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our Auditor's Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual
Report. Our apinicn on the financial stotements does not cover the other informetion and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibllity is 1o read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiolly
inconsistent with the financiol statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise oppears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or opparent matericl misstuternents, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to g material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude thot there is o material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the infarmation given in the Trustees' Report inciuding the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report and the Strotegic Report have been prepared in cccordonce with applicable legol

reguirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic

Report.

we have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in refation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

. the parent Trust has not kept cdeguate accounting recerds, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent Trust fingncial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certcin disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not maode; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Transforming Lives Educational
Trust {continved)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained mere fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
Trust for the purposes of compony law} are responsible for the preparation of the financicl statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of finoncial statements that are free from maoterial misstatement, whether due to froud or error.

In preparing the finoncial statements, the Trustees ore responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent Trust's
abllity to continue os ¢ going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend 1o liquidate the Group or the parent Trust or 10 cease
operations, or have no reaglistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whethar due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’'s Report that includes our opinion.
Reosconable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not o guarantee that an cudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UKD will always detect a moterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from froud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the cggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stotements.

frreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and regulations. We design procedures in ling
with our responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstotements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detoiled below:

Cur approach o identifying and assessing the risks of motericl misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulotions, was as follows:

. the senior stotutory auditor ensured that the engogement tearmn collectively hod the appropriote
competence, capgbiliies and skills to Identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations;

. we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the parent Trust and the group through discussions with
directors and other management, and from our commercial knowledge ond experience of the Academy sector;

. we focused on specific laws and reguictions which we considered maoy hove a direct material effect on the

financial staternents or the operotions of the parent Trust and the group, including the financial reporting
legisiction, Companies Act 2006, toxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, ond environmental ond heglth
and safety legislotion;

. we assessed the exient of complionce with the lows ond regulctions identified above through making
enguiries of management ond Inspecting legal correspondence; and
. identified laws and regulations were communicated within the gudit team regularly and the team remained

clert to instances of non-complionce throughout the audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Transforming Lives Educational
Trust (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

We ossessed the susceptibility of the parent Trust's and the group'’s financicl statements to material misstatement,
including cbtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

. making enquiries of menagement as to where they considered there was susceptibiity to froud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and olleged fraud; ond

. considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of froud ond non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through mancgement bias and override of controls, we

. cerformed analytical procedures to identify any unusua! or unexpected relationships;

. tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

. assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in
Note 3 were indicative of potential bias; and

. investigated the rotionale behind significant or unusual transactions.

Ay

In respoanse to the risk of irregularities ond non-complianee with faws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to;

. ogreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

. reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

. enguiring of management s to actual and potential littigation and cloims; ond

. reviewing correspondence with HMRC, refevant regulators and the parent Trust's ond group's legal advisors,

Becaouse of the inherent limitations of an cudit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to & material misstotement in the financial staterments or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases
the more that complionce with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater
regarding irregularities occurring due to froud rather than errer, as froud involves intentlonal conceaiment, forgery,
collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the cudit of the financial statements is located on the Financiol
Reporting Council's website ot www.ircorg.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditor's
Report.

Page 31



Transforming Lives Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Independent Auditor's Report on the financiol statements to the Members of Transforming Lives Educational
Trust (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable Trust's members, as o bedy, in accerdance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertoken so thot we might state to the charitable Trust's members
those matters we are required 1o state to them in on Auditor's Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anycne other than the charitoble Trust and ifs
members, as a body, for our audit work, far this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

o
Andrew Morris FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on beholf of
Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Birmingham

9 December 2025
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Transforming Lives Educational Trust
and the Secretary of State for Education

(n gccordance with the terms of our engagement letter doted 10 October 2025 and further to the requirements of the
Department for Education (DFE) os included in the extant Fromework and Guide for External Auditors ond Reporting
Accountanis of Academy Trusts 2024 to 2025, we have carried out an engagement to obtain imited assuronce about
whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and
income recelved by Transforming Lives Educational Trust during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have
not been opplied to the purposes intended by Parlioment and that the financiat transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This repori is made solely to Transforming Lives Educctional Trust and the Secretary of Stote for Education in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertcken so that we might stote 1o
Transforming Lives Educaticnal Trust and the Secretory of State for Education those matters we are required to stote
i & report and for no other purpose. Te the fullest extent permitted by low, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than Transforming Lives Educational Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, for our work, for
this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Transforming Lives Educationat Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the reguirements of Transforming Lives Educationat Trust's funding
cgreement with the Secretary of State for Education doted 29 September 2015 ond the Academy Trust Handbook,
extant from 1 September 2024, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed ond income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parlioment and the finoncial trensactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engogement are established in the United Kingdom by cur profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtain imited assurance and report in accordance with cur engogement letter and the requirements of the
extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts 2024 to 2025 We
report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out aur wark which suggests that in ot material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 Septemiber 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financicl transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Transforming Lives Educational Trust
ond the Secretary of State for Education (comtinued)

Approach

Wwe conductad our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by DFE, which requires a limited assurance engogement as set out in our
engagement letter.

The cbjective of o limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtoin information and
axplonctions in order to provide us with sufficient appropriote evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than o reasonable assurance engagement and consegquently
does not engble us 10 obtain assurance thot we would become aware of all significant motters that might be identified
in a reascnable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulority ond propriety of the
Trust's income ond expenditure.

In iine with the Framework and guide for external guditors and reporting accountants of ccademy trusts issued March
2024, we have not performed any odditional procedures regarding the Trust's compliance with sofeguarding, heaith
and safety, and estates management.

Conclusion

in the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the yeor 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 has not been applied for the
purposes intended by Porlioment or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern
them.

./

/g %///// /;/;/ ‘

Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Date: ¢ December 2025
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Consolidated Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)

For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

income from:
Donations and capital grants:
Other donations and capital grants
Other trading activities
Investments
Charitable activities:

Trust educational opergtions

Total income

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:
Trust educational operations

Total expenditure

Net income/{expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds before
other recognised gains/(losses)

Other recognised gains/(losses):

Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes

Cerecognition of pension surplus

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried forwoard

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025 2025 2024
Note £ £ £ £ £
4
59,155 - 116,385 175,540 270,978
3] 131,776 - - 131,776 101,046
7 40,088 20,000 - 60,088 29,275
5
62,943 19,712,766 - 19,775,709 18,271,413
293 962 19,732,766 116,385 20,143, 13 18,672,712
g 93,737 19,690,105 1,364,545 21,148,387 19,738,632
93,737 19,690,105 1,364,545 21,148,387 16,738,632
200,225 42,661 (1,248,160) (1,005,274) (1,065,920;
21 - (12,176} 12,176 - -
200,225 30,485 (1,235,984) (1,005,274) (1,065,920}
28 - 2,533,000 - 2,533,000 311,000
28 - (2,759,000) - (2,759,600) (442,000
21 200,225 (195,515) (1,235,984) (1,231,274) (1.196,920)
21 648,853 520,848 46,484,787 47,654,488 48,851,408
21 200,225 (195,515) (1,235,984)  (1,231,274) (1,196,920)
325,333 45,248,803 46,423,214 47 654488

21 849,078

The notes on pages 41 to 78 form part of these financial stoterments.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarontee)
Registered number: 07515832

Consolidated Baltance Sheet
As at 31 August 2025

2025 2024
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tongible assets 16 45,225,970 46,484,787
45,225,970 46,484,787
Current assets
Debtors 18 512,794 406,309
Cash at bank and in hond 2,069,127 2,015,894
2,581,921 2422203
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 19 (1,384,677) (1.251,756)
Net current assets 1,197,244 1170447
Total assets less current liabilities 46,423,214 47 655,234
Creditors: amounts falling due ofter more than
one year 20 - (746)
Net assets excluding pension asset 46,423,214 47,654,488
Defined benefit pension scheme asset 28 - -
Total net assets 46,423,214 47 654 488
Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds A 45,248,803 46,484 787
Restricted income funds 21 325,333 520,848
Pensicn reserve 21 - -
Total restricted funds 21 45,574,136 47.005,635
Unrestricted income funds 21 849,078 648,853
Total funds 46,423,214 47 654 488
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: Q7515832

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continuved)
As at 31 August 2025

The financial statements on pages 35 to 78 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on C% December
2025 and ore signed on their behalf, by

Ve

G J French
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 41te 78 form part of these financial statements.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 07515832

Trust Statement of financial position
As at 31 August 2025

Note

Fixed ossets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments 17
Current gssets
Debtors 18
Cash at bank and in hand
Current liabilities
Creditors: omounts falling due within one yeor 19
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts folling due after more than

one year 20
Net assets excluding pension asset
Defined benefit pension scheme asset 28
Total net assets
Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 21
Restricted income funds 2
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 21
Pension reserve P
Total restricted funds 21
Unrestricted income funds 21

Total funds

2025

£

45,225,970

1

45,225,971
512,794
2,069,127
2,581,921

(1,384,678)

1,197,243

46,423,214

46,423,214

46,423,214
45,248,803
325,333
45,574,136

45,574,136

849,078

46,423,214

2024

£

46,484,787

1

46,484,788
406,309
2,015,894
2422203
(1,251757)

1170.446

47,655,234

(746)

47,654,488

47,654,488
46484787
520,848
47,005,635

47,005 635

648,853

47,654,488
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Transforming Lives Educationai Trust
(A Compony Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 07515832

Trust Statement of financial position (continued)
As ot 31 August 2025

The financial statemenis on pages 35 to 78 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 09 December
2025 and are signed on their behalf, by:

ool

G J French
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 41 1o 78 form part of these financical statements.
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by/{used in) operating octivities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 41 to 78 form port of these financial statements

Note

23

25

24

26,27

2025 2024

£ £

3,982 (392,382)

50,745 (106,261

(1,494) (60363)

53,233 (559,006)
2,015,894 2,574,900
2,069,127 2,015,894
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Transforming Lives Educational Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1 General information

Transforming Lives Educational Trust is o private Company limited by guarantee, incorperated in the United
Kingdom and registered in England ond Wales. The registered number ond oddress of the registered office is
given on page 1 of these finoncial statements,

2. Accounting policies

21

2.2

A summary of the principal cccounting policles adopted {which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial stotements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, hove been prepared
under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Finoncial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102), the Accounting ond Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financiol
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK end Republic of ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Accdemies Accounts Direction 2024 1o 2025 issued by DfE, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Transforming Lives Educational Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,

The financial statements are presented in the Trust's functional ond presentational currency of GBP
(Sterling). They are rounded to the nearest £

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) and Consolidated Balance Sheet consolidate the
financial stotements of the Trust ond its subsidiary undertoking. The results of the subsidiory are
consclidoted on a Iine by line basis.

The Trust has taken advantage of the exemgtion allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
and has not presented its own Statement of Financial Activities in these financial statements.

Geing concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropricte ie. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust to
continue as & going concern, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of o pericd of af least one year
from the dote of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operctional existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the Trust's abllity to continue os a going concern, thus they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The Trustees have prepared forecosts through to 31 August 2028, incorperating expected increased
funding from increased pupll numbers and increosed stoff costs, These forecasts demonstrate that the
Trust is expected to generate financial surpluses for years 2025/26 to 2027/28,
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

22

23

2.4

Going concern {continved)

As at 31 August 2025, the Group had net current assets of £1197,244 (2024 - £1170,447) and bosed on cash
flow forecasts is expected to continue to be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for a pericd of at
least twelve months from the date of opproval of these finoncial statements.

Income

All incoming rescurces are recognised when the Group has entitlement 1o the funds, the receipt is probable
and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Consolidated Stotement of Financial Activities on o receivable basis. The balance
of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds
on the Bolonce Sheet where income is received in advance of meeting ony performance-related
conditions there is not unconditicnol entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included
in creditors gs deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitierment
occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated Stotement of Financial Activities in the year
for which it is receivable and ony abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as o liability.

Capital grants are recegnised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants ore reflected in the Balonce Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which
they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on o receivoble basis {where there are no performonce-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can ke reliably measured,

Other income
Cther income, including catering and lettings, is recognised in the year it is recelvable ond to the extent the
Group has provided the goods or services,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to o
third party, it is prebabile that o transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure 15 classified by activity. The costs of each octivity
are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertoking
each activity. Direct costs attributable 1o ¢ single activity are allocoted directly 1o that activity. Shared costs
which contribute 1o more than one qctivity and support costs which are not attributable to g single activity
are apportionad between those activities on a basis cansistent with the use of resources. Central stoff costs
are affocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation chorges allocated on the portion of the asset’s
use.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

24

25

2.6

2.7

Expenditure (continued)

Charitable activities
These ore costs incurred on the Group's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating
to the governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,
Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on depostt is inciuded when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by
the Group; this is normally upen netification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with whom the
funds are deposited.

Toxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Fingnce Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of o charitable company for UK corporation tox purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxetion in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by Port 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tox Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are opplied exclusively 1o
charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed dssets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised os tongible fixed assets and cre carried ot cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

where tangible fixed assets have been acguired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Bolance Sheet ot cost ond depreciated over their
expacted vseful economic life. Where there ore specific conditions attoched to the funding regulring the
continued use of the asset, the reloted grants ore credited {o a restricted fixed asset fund in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and carried forwoard in the Bolance Sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed osset fund in the Consclidated Statement of
Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation
on such ossets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on oll tangible fixed assets other than freehold lond ond assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line or reducing balance
basis over its expected useful life, as follows:
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Deprecigtion is provided on the following bases:

Long term leasehold land - 0.8% straight-line
Long-term leaseholid property - 2% reducing balance
Leasehold improvements - 4% reducing bolonce
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 20% reducing balance
Computer eguipment - 33.33% straight-line
Motor vehicles - 10% reducing balance
Other fixed ossets - 5% reducing balance

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until
they are brought into use and reclassified to leasehold land ond buildings or leasehold improvements.

A review for impairment of a fixed osset is carried out if events or changes in circumstonces indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset moy not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of
fixed assets and their recoverable omounts are recognised as impairments. impoirment losses are
recognised in the Consolldated Statement of Financial Activities.

2.8 Investments
Investrnants in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.

2.9 Debtors
Trade ond other debtors are recognised gt the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepaoyments ore valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

2.10 Cash at bank and in hand
Cash of bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liguid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

211 Liabilities

Liabilities gre recognised when there is an obligation at the Balonce Sheet date as o result of o past event,
it is probable that o transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlerment, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities ore recognised ot the amount that the Group anticipotes it
will pay to settle the debt or the amount it hos recelved as gdvanced payments for the goods or services it
must provide.
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2, Accounting policies (continued)

212

213

2.4

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group hos an obligation at the reporting date as o result of a post
event which it Is probable will result in the transter of economic benefits and the obligation can be
estimated relicbly.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time volue of meney is material, the provision is besed on the present value of those amounts,
discounted at the pre-tox discount rate thot reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payabile and similar charges.

Fingncial instruments

The Group only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Group and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 18. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts
due to the Trust’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at fuce value less any impairment. Cash ot bank is
classified as ¢ basic financial instrument and is measured at face volue.

Cash ot bank is clossified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at foce value.

Financic! liobilities - trode creditors, accruals ond other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 19 and 20. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be o financiatl liability, os
the cash settlement has already taken ploce and there is an abligation to deliver services rather than cosh
or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Trust's whoily owned subsidiary are held ot face value
less any impoirment,

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities on a
strgight line basis over the lease term.
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2. Accounting poticies (continued)

215

216

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those rescurces which may be usad towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Group ot the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for porticulor
purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be gpplied to specific capital purposes Imposed by
the funders where the asset acquired or crected is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted generat funds comprise all other restricted funds recelved with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include gronts from the Deportment for Education.

Investment income, gains and losses ore aliocated to the appropriate fund.
Pensions

Retirement benefits to empioyees of the Group are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ("TPS™) and
the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS™). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are colculated so as 10 spread the cost of pensions over
employees working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a substontially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial voluations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is
an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying ossets 10 assign between employers.
Conseguently, the TPS is treated os ¢ defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relote.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Group
in separote trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are meaosured ot fair value ond labilities
are measured on an actucrial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted ot a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on o high gquality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency
to the licbilities, The actuarial volugtions are obtained ot least triennialiy and are updated ot each Balance
Sheet dote. The agmounts charged 1o operating surplus cre the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit chonges, settlements and curtoilments. They are included as part of staff
costs ©s incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liobility/asset is also recognised in the
Consolidoied Stotement of Financial Activities ond comprisaes the Interest cost on the defined benefit
obligation and interest income on the scheme ossets, calculgted by multiplying the foir value of the
scheme assets ot the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actuc! return on the scheme assets
is recognised in other recegnised gains and losses.

Actugrial goins and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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3, Critical accounting estimates and oreas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaivated and are bosed on historicel experience and other foctors,
including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions.

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates ond
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the reloted actual results. The estimates and essumptions that have
o significant risk of cousing o meterial adjustment to the carrying amounts cf assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit licbility depends on a number of
factors thot are determined on an actucrial basis using a voriety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
farward approach which projects results from the lotest full actuaricl valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions fiobility ot 31 August 2025. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roli forward approach and a full actuarial veluation would impact on the carrying amount of

the pension liability.
Critical areas of judgement:

The preparation of the financiol statements in conformity with generally accepted occounting principles
requires the Trustees to make estimates and cssumptions that offect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities ond disclosure of contingent assets and fiabifities ¢t the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues ond expenses during the reporting period. Actual results in the future could differ
from those estimates. In this regard, the Trustees belleve that the critical accounting policies where judgements
or estimating are necessarily opplied are surmmmarised below.

Depreciation and residual valve

Tangible fixed ossets ore deprecioted over their useful lives taking into cccount residual values where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vory depending
on o number of factors. Residuo! values consider such things os future market conditions, the remaining life of
the asset and projected disposal values, and plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date.
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4. Income from donations and capital grants

Dongtions

Capitg! Grants

Donctions

Captto! Grants

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025
£ £ £
59,155 - 59,155
- 116,385 116,385
59,155 16,385 175,540
Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024
£ £ £
31,690 - 31690
- 239,288 239,288
31,690 239,288 270978
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5. Funding for the Trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025
£ £ £
Educationol Operations
DfE grants
General Annugl Grant (GAG) - 12,866,739 12,866,739
Other DfE grants
16-19 core education funding - 2,915,842 2,915,842
Start up grant - 121,000 121,000
Pupil Premium - £56,593 656,593
Teachers’ Pay Grant - 251,411 251,41
Teachers’ Pension Grant - 410,588 410,588
Universal Infant Free School Meals grant - 42,483 42,483
PE and Sports Premium - 35,540 35,540
Core Schools Budget Grant - 587,294 587,294
Others - 307825 307,825

- 18,195,315 18,195,315
Other Government grants

Special Educational Needs - 821,693 821,693
GCther government grants - 57,387 57,387

- 879,080 879,080

Other income from the Trust's educational operations 62,943 638,371 701,314

Teotal 2025 62,943 16,712,766 19,775,709
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5. Funding for the Trust's charitable activities {continuved)

Unrestricted Restricted Totaok
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024
£ £ £
Educational Operations
BfE grants
General Annug! Grant (GAG) - 12,878.800 12,878,800
Other DfE grants
16-19 core education funding - 2,010,551 2,010,551
Start up grant - 152,500 152,500
Pupil Premium - 613,371 613,371
Teachers' Pay Grant - 237893 237,893
Teachers’ Pension Grant - 223737 223737
PE and Sports Premium - 35,799 35,799
Universal Infant Free School Meals gront - 35,590 35,590
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant (MSAG) - 464,287 464287
Others - 287974 287974
- 16,940,502 16,940,502
Other Government grants
Specigl Educational Needs - 602,333 602,333
Other government grants - 80,985 80,985
- 683,318 683,318
Other income from the Trust's educational operations 39,713 607,880 647593
18,231,700 18271413

Total 2024 39713

Included in other income from the Multi Acaderny Trust's educctional operations are catering income,

educational trips income, teacher training income, music income, clubs income and generatl sales income.
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6. lncome from other trading activities
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2025 2025
£ £
Lettings 131,776 131,776
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2024 2024
£ £
Other trading income 202 202
Lettings 100,844 100,844
101,046 101,046

7. Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2025 2025 2025
£ £ £
Interest 40,088 - 40,088
Pension income - 20,000 20,000

40,088 20,000 60,088
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7.

Investment income (continued)

Interest

Pension income

Expenditure

£ducational Operations:

Direct costs

Support costs

Educational Operctions:

Direct costs

Support costs

Unrestricted Restricted Total

funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024

£ £ £

26,275 - 263275

- 3,000 3,000

26,275 3,000 29275

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2025 2025 2025 2025

£ £ £ £
13.811.032 310,013 1,888,203 15,609,248
2226385 1,218,939 1093815 4,539,139
16,037,417 2,128,952 2982018 21,148,387
Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2024 2024 2024 2024

£ £ £ £
12,664,072 895458 1,987,955 15,547 485
2.024166 1197.700 $69,280 4191146
2,957,235 19,738,631

14,688,238 2093158
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8. Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

Summary by fund tupe

Educaticnal Operations

Educational Operations

10.  Analysis of expenditure by octivities

Educational Operations

Educational Operations

Unrestricted
funds

2025

£

93,737

I ——

Unrestricted
funds

2024

£

59,445

Activities
undertaken
directly
2025

£

16,609,248

Activities
undertaken
directly
2024

£

15,547,485

Restricted
funds
2025

£

21,054,650

Restricted
funds
2024

£

15,679,187

Support
costs
2025

£

4539139

Support costs
2024
£

419146

Total
2025

21,148,387

Total
2024

19,738,632

Total
funds
2025

21,148,387

Total

funds
2024

19,738,631
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10. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Educational supplies
Examination fees

Staff development

Music instruction, sports coaches and swimming lessons
Educational consultancy
Trips expenditure

Other direct costs
Recruitment and CPD training
Maintenance of equipment

Technology costs

Total Total
funds funds
2025 2024

£ £
13,809,322 12,664,072
910,013 895,458
446,895 488,726
233,579 238,216
1,950 7,769
129,127 216,957
107,378 79,357
529,227 511,834
23,977 21,018
174,827 135,476
14,769 11,409
228,184 257193
15,547,485

16,609,248
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10.

1

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continved)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Printing, postage and stationery
Trave! and subsistence
Other support costs
Catering costs
Maintenance of premises
Maintenance of equipment
Rates

Energy

fnsurance

Transport

Telephone costs

tL.egal, professional and marketing costs

Net expenditure

Net expenditure for the year includes:

Operating leose rentals

Depreciation of tongible fixed assets

Fees paid to auditor for:

- audit

- other services

Total Total
funds funds
2025 2024

£ £
2,228,095 2,024,166
454,532 220,322
44,574 56,977
11,995 24,657
173,612 236,952
219,136 263,059
600,556 524,670
43 10
116,536 145767
394,350 402,972
80,469 76,593
3,745 5,865
16,768 16,095
194,728 192,961
4,539,139 4,191,146
2025 2024

£ £

83,836 78152
1,364,545 1,115,780
22,600 20,550
5,305 4550
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12, stoff

Q. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Multi- Multi-
Academy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2025 2024 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
Wages and salaries 11,229,040 10,428,545 11,229,040 10,428,545
Social security costs 1,298,523 1,078,704 1,298,523 1.078,704
Pension costs 2,662,613 2,304,903 2,662,613 2,304,903
15,190,176 13,812,152 15,190,176 13,812,152
Agency stoff costs 846,349 839,929 846,349 839,929
Staff restructuring costs 892 36157 892 38157
16,037,417 14,688,238 16,037,417 14,688,238
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Multi- Multi-
Academy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2025 2024 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
Redundancy payments - 22168 - 2268
Severance payments 892 13,689 892 13,589
892 36,157 892 36,157
b. Severance payments
The Group paid 1 severance payments in the year (2024 -1, disclosed in the foliowing bands:
Group Group
2025 2024
No. Ne.

£0 - £25,000

1
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12 Staff (continued)

¢. Special staff severance poyments

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-contractual severance payments totalling £892 (2024 - £13,989).

Individually, the payment was £892 (2024 - £13989).

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Group and the Trust during the year was as follows:

Leadership
Teachers

Adminisiration and support

e. Higher paid staff

Group Group
2025 2024
No. No.
20 18
139 142
205 208
364 368

The numbper of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

WQOs!

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
In the band £70,001 - £80,00C
In the band £80,001 - £90,000
In the band £90,001 - £100.000
In the band £100,001 - £110,000
In the band £110,001 - £120,000
In the band £120,001 - £130,000
in the band £130,001 - £140,000
In the band £140,001 - £150,000

Group
2025
No.

2

- =k = N

Group
2024
No.

14
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12. Staff (continved)
f. Key manogement personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed
on page 1 The tetal amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Trust wos
£2,441828 (2024 - £2,126,580).

13. Central services

The Group has provided the following central services to its academies during the yeor:

. Finance and accounting

. HR and payroil

. Legal, compliance and risk
» Marketing and PR

. Governance

. Estates

. IT

. School improvement

. WES

The Group charges for these services on the following basis:
The Central Charge for 2024/2025 wos made based on 9% of ¢lf budgeted income from the DfE.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2025 2024

£ £

Ashlawn Scheool 934,589 893,888
Henry Hinde Infant School 84,951 79135
Henry Hinde Junior School 144,343 125,852
Houlton School 444 853 292,070
Total 1,608,736 1390,945
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4. Trustees remuneration and expenses
During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2024 - £NIL).

During the year ended 371 August 2025, no Trustee expenses hove been incurred (2024 - £NIL).

15. Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Group has opted into the Depariment of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), on alternative to
insurance where UK government funds cover losses thet arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors of omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides
unlimited cover, it is not possible to quentify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost
of the RPA scheme membership.
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17.

18.

Fixed asset investments

Trust

Cost
At 1September 2024

At 31 August 2025

Net book value

At 31 August 2025

At 31 August 2024

Debtors

Due within one year
Trade debtors
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

VAT recoverable

Investments

in subsidiary

companies

£

1

1

1

1
Multi- Multi-
Academy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2025 2024 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
3,300 2,925 3,300 2,925
1,348 2,445 1,348 2,445
481,949 367,450 481,949 367450
26,197 33,489 26,197 33489
512,794 406,309 512,794 406,309
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19.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Amounts owed 1o group undertakings
Other taxation and sociatl security
Other creditors

Accruals ond deferred income

Deferred income ot 1 September 2024
Resources deferred during the year

Amounts released from previous periods

Muiti- Mudti-
Acadermy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2025 2024 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
746 1,494 746 1494
364,01 347,007 364,071 347,007
- - 1 1
287,720 232658 287,720 232,658
321,089 278.061 321,089 278,061
411,051 392536 411,051 392,536
1,384,677 1,251,756 1,384,678 1,251,757
Multi- Muiti-
Academuy Academy
Group Group Trust Trust
2025 2024 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
65,794 155,225 65,794 155,225
104,521 65,794 104,521 65,794
{65,794) (155,225) (65,794} (155,225)
104,51 65,794 104,521 65,794

Al the balance sheet date, the Trust was holding funds received in advance for educational visits booked for the
20725-26 academic year and Universal infont Free Schools grant funding received in advance for the Autumn

Term 2025,
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20. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than cne year

Multi- Multi-

Academy Academy

Group Group Trust Trust

2025 2024 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

Other creditors - 746 - 746

Included within other loans payoble in more than ane year were loans received from the DIE for capital projects
that were payoble over seven and eight years respectively.
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21 Statement of funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2024 Income  Expenditure infout  (Losses) 2025
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Designated funds
Student Inspirgtional Fund 32,266 - - - - 32,266
General funds
General Funds 616,587 293,962 (93,737) - - 816,812
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 487,081 15,768,184 (15,755,410)  (205,886) - 293,969
Stort-up grants - 121,000 (121,000} - - .
Pupil Premium - 656,593 (656,593) - - -
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 1,635,141 (1,635,141 - - -
Other government grants - 879,080 (879,080) - - -
Catering - 25,426 (219,136) 193,710 - -
16/19 bursary fund 33,767 14,397 (16,800) - - 31,364
Other restricted funds - 612,945 (612,945) - - -
Pensicn reserve - 20,000 206,000 - (226,000} -
520,848 19,732,766 (19,690,105} 12,176) (226,000} 325,333
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21.

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 Balance ot
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2024 income Expenditure infout  (Losses) 2025

£ £ £ £ £ £

Restricted fixed asset
funds

Gift from Local Authority
and cther multi academy

trusts 7,815,888 - (910,013) - - 36,905,875
DfE/ESFA capital gronts,

other fixed asset funding

and revenue transfer to

capital 2,627,216 116,385 (394,791 9,354 E 2,358,164
ACMF Funding 1,968,141 - (13,293) - - 1,954,848
Condition Improvement

Funding 4,073,542 - (46,448) 2,822 - 4,029,916

46,484,787 116,385 {1,364,545) 12,176 - 45,248,803

Total Restricted funds 47,005,635 19,849151 (21,054,650) - (226,000) 45574136

Total funds 47,654,488 20,143,113 (21,148,387) - (226,000} 46,423,214

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general fund
This fund represents granis and other income received for the Trust's operationg! activities ond development.

Pension reserve
The pension reserve included within restricted general funds represents the Trust's share of the pension liability
arising on the LGPS pension fund.

Restricted fixed asset funds
These funds represents gronts received from the DfE to carry out works of a capital nature.

Transfers between funds
Transfers between funds represent a contribution to capital mode from revenue af the agreement of the
Trustees.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of Stote, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of
GAG it could carry forword at 31 August 2025.
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2. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding yeor is as follows:

Balonce ot Balonce at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 income  Expenditure infout  (Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Designated funds
Student Inspirational Fund 32,266 - - - - 32,266
General funds
General Funds 477308 198,724 (59,445) - - 616,587
Total Unrestricted funds 509,574 198,724 (59,445) - - 648,853
Restricted general funds
General Annual Gront (GAG) 1125433 14,870,898 (15,173,267 (335,983 - 487,081
Start-up granis - 152,500 {152,500) - - -
Pupil Premium - &13,371 (613,371} - - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 1,285,280 {1,285.280) - - -
Other government grants - 683,318 (683,318) - - -
Catering - 23,609 (227,057) 203,448 - -
16/19 bursory fund 26114 18,453 (10,800} - - 33,767
Other restricted funds 4,543 584,271 (588,814} - - -
Pension reserve (43,000) 3,000 171,000 - (131,000) -
113,090 18,234,700 (18,563,407} (132,535  {(131,000) 520,848
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21

Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted fixed asset
funds

Gift from Local Authority
and other multi acaderny
trusts

DfE/ESFA copital grants,
other fixed osset funding
and revenue transfer to
capital

Other fixed asset funding
ACMF Funding

Condition improvement
Funding

Total Restricted funds

Total funds

Balonce at Balonce at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2023 Income  Expenditure infout  {Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
38,711,346 - (895.458) - - 37815888
1,609,829 198,187 (193,238)  1,012.438 - 2627216
879,903 - - {879,903 - -
1,978822 - (10,681 - - 1,968,141
4,048,844 411 (16,403) - - 4,073,542
47,228,744 239,288 {1,115,780) 132,535 - 46,484 787
48341834 18473988 {19,679,187) - (131.000) 47005635
48,851,408 (19,738,632) - 47,654,488

Total funds analysis by academy

18,672,712

(131,000)

Fund balonces for each ccademy of 31 August 2025 and 31 August 2024 were zero, hence o breakdown by
gcademy is not included in these accounis.
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21 Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Ashlawn School
Henry Hinde Infant School
Henry Hinde Junior School
Houlton School

Central Services®

Trust

Teaching and

*Costs inciude ali iocal government pension scheme charges for the Trust.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as foliows:

Ashlown School
Henry Hinde Infant School
Henry Hinde Junior School
Houlton Scheol

Central Services

Trust

educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff Educational excivding Total
costs costs supplies depreciation 2025
£ £ £ £ £
7.545317 1.017.529 478,705 1,306,132 10,347,683
923563 62,562 32,252 177,950 1,196,327
1100,037 60,408 47,741 242,578 1,451,164
3,511,637 358,384 164,697 907,204 4,941,922
728,767 729212 1.653 387114 1,844,746
13,809,321 2,228,095 725,048 3,021,378 19,783,842
Teaching and
educational Other costs
support stoff Other support Educational excluding Total
Costs staff costs supplies  depreciation 2024
£ £ £ £ £
7.563,208 1,009,771 522,287 1,535,851 10,631,117
83597 54,666 24,581 203,969 1,119,187
1,066,261 45575 65,057 254,040 1,474,933
2,496,390 248535 161,591 741578 3648,094
702,243 661619 10,403 375,256 1749521
12,664,073 2.024166 783919 3150694 18,622,852
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22.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2025 2025 2025 2025

£ £ £ £

Tangible fived gssets - - 45225970 45,225,970
Current assets 849078 1,709,264 23579 2,581,901
Creditors due within one year - (1,383,931 (746) (1,384,677
Total 849078 325,333 45248 803 46,423,214

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed gsset Totol

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2024

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed cssets - - 46484787 46,484,787
Current qssets 648 853 1,718,285 55,065 2422203
Creditors due within one year - (1,197,437} (54,319 {1251.756)
Creditors due in more than one yeor - - (746) (746)
648,853 520,848 46,484,787 47 654 488

Total
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23,

24

25,

Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the year (0s per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pensicn scheme finance cost
(increase)/decrease in deblors

Increase/(decregse) in creditors

Net cash provided buy/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash used in financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest receivable
Purchose of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DE/ESFA and other capital income

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

2025 2024
£ £
(1,005,274) (1,065,920)
1,364,545 1,115,780
(116,385) (2%9,288)
(40,088) (26,275}
{206,000) (171.000)
{20,000) {3.000)
{106,485) 65,774
133,669 (68,453)
3,982 (392,382)
Group Group
2025 2024
£ £
(1,494) {60.363)
(1,494) (60.363)
Group Group
2025 2024
£ £
40,088 26,275
(105,728 (371,824
116,385 239,288
50,745 (106,261
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26,

27,

28.

Analysis of cash ond cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash ot bonk and in hand
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

Pension commitments

Group Group

2025 2024

£ £

2,069,127 2,015,894

2,069,127 2,015,894

At

September Other non- At 31 August
2024 Cash flows cash changes 2025

£ £ £ £
2,015,894 53,233 - 2,069,127
(1,494 1,494 {746) (746)

(746) . 746 -

2,013,654 54,727 - 2,068,381

The Trust's employees belong 1o two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for acodemic aond related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is manoged by Warwickshire County Council. Both are muiti-employer defined benefit

schemes.

The lotest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the

period ended 31 March 2022,

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
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28.

Pension commitments (continved)
Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Tecchers Pension Schemes (TPS) is o statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the opticn to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentoge
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2074 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review Is 1o ensure scheme costs are recognised and manoged
appropriately ond the review specifies the lavel of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme voluations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial voluation of the TPS was corrled out as at 31 March 2020 The
voluation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set
by HMT, appluing a notional investment return based on 17% above the rote of CPL The key elements of the
valuation outcome are:

. Emploger contribution rotes set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including o 0.08% administration levy).
This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no change in
member benefits is needed.

. Total scheme liokilities (pensicns currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investrents held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving o notional
past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this voiuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024, The next valuction result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2027,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,087,502 (2024 - £1,724,263).

A copy of the vaiugtion report ond supporting documentation Is con the Teachers' Pensions website
(https/ /www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/tecchers-pensions-vaiuation-report.ospx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Group is
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets ond liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the Group has taken
advantage of the exermption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a
defined contribution scheme. The Group has set cut above, the information avoilable on the scheme,
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28.

Pension commitments {continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is o funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the gssets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2025 was £1,010,000 (2024 - £565,000), of
which employer's contributions totolled £786,000 (2024 - £754,000) and employees' contributions totclled
£224,000 (2024 - £21.000). The ogreed contribution rates for future years are 21.2 per cent for employers and
5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note 2.16 the LGPS cbligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the employees
transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to, and
did, join the Scheme in the ysar. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion
represents thelr cumulative service at both the predecesser school and the Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has ogreed, ot the request of the Secretory of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstonding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department
for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for
Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with g parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2025 2024

% %

Raote of increase in salaries 37 36
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.7 286
Discount rate for scheme lLiabilities 6.0 5.0

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 cre:

2025 2024
Years Yeqrs
Retiring todoy
Males 20.7 200
Females 241 24.2
Retiring in 20 years
Maoles 218 211
Females 255 255
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28.  Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

2025 2024

£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% (196) {237)
Discount rote -0.1% 196 237
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 350 396
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (350) (396)
CPlrote +01% 195 233

CPl rate -0.1% (195 (233)

e —
S ———

Share of scheme qssets
The Group's share of the assets in the scheme wos:

At 3t August At 31 August

2025 2024

£ £

Equities 6,244,000 5,439,000
Corporate bonds 3,823,000 3,330,000
Property 2,549,000 2,220,000
Cash aond other liquid assets 127,000 110,000

Total market value of assets 12,743,000 11,099,000

The octual return on scheme assets was £770,000 (2024 - £853,600).

The omounts recognised in the Consclidated Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2025 2024

£ £

Current service cost (580,000) {583,000)

interest income 577,000 511,000

interest cost {557,000) (508,000)
Total amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Activities (560,000) (580,000)
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28.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present vaiue of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (gains)/losses

Benefits paid

At 31 August

Changes in the fair volue of the Group's share of scheme assets were ags follows:

At 1 September
interest income
Actuorial gains
Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August

2025 2024

£ £
9,916,000 8,748,000
580,000 583,000
512,000 472,600
224,000 211,000
(2,340,000) 31,000
(136,000) (129,000)
8,756,000 9,916,000
2025 2024

£ £
11,099,000 9,410,000
577,000 511,000
193,000 342,000
786,000 754,000
224,000 211,000

(136,000) (129.000)
12,743,000 11,099,000
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28,

29,

30.

Pension commitments (continved)

2025 2024

£ £

Present value of pension liabilities (8,756,000) (9,916,000)
Fair value of scheme assets 12,743,000 11,099,000
Derecognition of pension surplus {including effect of asset ceiling)” (3.987,000) (1,183,000}

Net pension scheme surplus - .

As the LGPS surplus is irrecoverable, for schemes in a surpius position at the yeor end, recognition on the
balance sheet has been restricted to £Nil. The in-year adjustment of £2,804,000 (2024 - £478,000) hos been
offset against both investment income and the overall actuarial gain for the yeor. The derecognition of pension
surplus offset cgainst the overall actuorial gain in the year was £2,759,000 (2024 - £442000) and the interest on
the effect of asset celling was £45,000 (2024 - £36,000) being a reduction to investment (pansion) income.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2025 the Group and the Trust hod commitments to make future minimum lecse payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Multi- Multi-

Academy Academy

Group Group Trust Trust

2025 2024 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

Not later than 1 year 19,042 83,992 19,042 83,992
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 49,605 82186 49,605 82.186
68,647 166,178 68,647 166,178

Members' Hability

Each member of the charitable companu undertekes to contribute o the assets of the company In the event of
it being wound up while he/she is o member, or within one yeor ofter he/she ceases to be o member, such
amount Gs may be required, net exceeding £10 for the debts and licbilities contrected before he/she ceases to

be o member.
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3. Relcted porty transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustess beaing drawn from local public
and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an
interest. All transactions involving such crgonisations are conducted in occordance with the reguirements of the
Acadermny Trust Handbook, including notifying the DIE of all tfransactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and
obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's finoncial regulations and normat procurement
procedures relating to connected ond related party transactions.

No refated party transactions took place in the period of cccount,

32.  Principal subsidiaries

The following was a subsidiary undertaking of the Trust:

Name Company Class of Holding Included in
number shares consolidation
TLET Professional Learning Limited (formerly 09325660 Ordinary 100% Yes

Innovation Learning and
Leadership Alliance Limited)

The subsidiary was dormant during the year.

Name Net assets
£
TLET Professional Learning Limited (formerly Innovation Learning and 1

Leadership Allignce Limited)
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